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NR Eligible: yes _X_ 

no 

Property Name: Trinity Episcopal Church Inventory Number: _C~E~-2~5_6 ____ _ 

Address: Bridge Street, _10_5 ____________ City: Elkton Zip Code: _______ _ 

County: Cecil USGS Topographic Map: _,,E=lkt=o=n,__ ___________ _ 

Owner: Is the property being evaluated a district? __ yes 

Tax Parcel Number: ____ _ Tax Map Number: Tax Account ID Number: 

Project: Agency: 

Site visit by MHT staff: X no __ yes Name: Date: 

Is the property is located within a historic district? __ yes --A-- no 

If the property is within a district District Inventory Number: ______ _ 

NR-listed district __ yes Eligible district __ yes Name of District: 

Preparer's Recommendation: Contributing resource ___yes __ no Non-contributing but eligible in another context ___ yes 

·--------------------------------- ·---

If the property is not within a district (or the property is a district) Preparer's Recommendation: Eligible ___X_yes no 

Criteria: A B c D 

Documentation on the property/district is presented in: 
federal files, for photos see Elkton compliance file 

Considerations: A B c D E F G 

Description of Property and Eligibility Determination: (Use continuation sheet if necessary and attach map and photo) 

[At the] northwest corner of North Main Street and Bridge Street, is a carefully designed Victorian Gothic church which is in 
excellent condition and very well preserved. It features a polychromatic combination of dark stone and contrasting red 
brickwork which is used in horizontal bands and as trim around openings. It also has a striking bell tower, buttresses, original 
large door hinges, and stained glass, tiles, and slate roof. To the rear is a small, hipped roof, brick and stone parish house of 
similar design. 

Significance: 
Elkton's advantageous location at the juncture of major transportation corridors was instrumental in its achievement of 
significance in the military, commercial, and industrial history of the region. 

Elkton figures prominently in the military history of the nation. It served as a key point of embarkation during the 
Revolutionary War: in 1777 the British general Howe landed his armies here en route to Philadelphia; it was this maneuver 
which doomed General Burgoyne at Saratoga. In March, 1781, Lafayette embarked from Elkton with his troops bound for 
Annapolis, and in September of the same year, Washington also embarked from Elkton to inaugurate the climactic Yorktown 
campaign. Elkton retained its strategic importance during the War of 1812 when British marines under Admiral Cockburn 
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mounted an unsuccessful attack on the town. 

Elkton preceded Baltimore in the development of the flour-packing industry and was hailed by 1807 as an important wheat 
market, with trade at that time having attained a level of 250,000 bushels per year. After the War of 1812, packet lines 
continued to run between Elkton and Baltimore, and the New Castle Frenchtown Railroad (1832) increased Elkton's importance 
as a transportation center. Numerous mills were established on the Elk River, evidenced by surviving millraces, and the town 
thrived. Prosperity waned in subsequent years until the post-Civil War period, when new industries, including pulp mills, 
machine shops, fertilizer plants, and canneries came to the town, stimulating housing construction, as reflected in the late 19th 
c. residential districts. 

Elkton's history and development are clearly reflected in the five districts and four individual structures within the Multiple 
Resource Area. The town is architecturally significant in possessing a large and varied collection of well-preserved structures 
representing changes in fashions in residential, commercial, and ecclesiastical architecture from the mid-18th to early 20th 
centuries, with an especially fine concentration of houses, churches, and commercial buildings dating from the latter half of the 
19th c. 
[extracted from P. Kurtze & P. Weissman] 

Prepared by: P. Kurtze & P. Weissman,MHT (1980 & 82) Date Prepared: 
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The tCMn of Elkton was inoorporated and designated the seat of 
Cecil County, Maryland, in 1787. Elkton's grcMth and develoµrent fran the 
earliest patent in the 17th century through the twentieth can largely be 
attributed to its location at the juncture of the headwaters of the Chesapeake 
Bay and overland travel routes, including the original Post Road between 
Philadelphia and Baltirrore. An in;:ortant ccmrercial and industrial center 
in its early years, Elkton suffered a decline in prosperity in the mid-19th 
century, but the ccrni.ng of new industries circa 1880-1900 again spurred the ro-m's 
develotXTel'lt. 

The history of Elkton's develoµrent is arrply reflected in its 
architecture, although a series of fires beginning in 1838 and recent re­
develoµrent have affected the survival of historic structures. Surviving resources 
are broadly separated by recent or substantially altered structures; it is for 
this reason that a detennination of National Register eligibility as a JTD.lltiple 
resource area is being sought. In its present fonn, Elkton exhibits a variety 
of styles, types, and levels of architecture clearly representing aspects 
of its long and various history, including a civic and carr.ercial district, three 
areas of working-class housing arrl a neighborhood of fashionable hares of nore 
affluent residents, and a nurrber of individual sites representing different 
architectural forms and historic periods. 

The ooundaries of Elkton multiple resource area are very similar to the 
corporate boundaries of the town as shown in lake, Griffing, and Stevenson's 
1877 Atlas of Cecil County. The area is bourrled on the east and south by Big 
Elk Creek, an the north by the Conrail Tracks, and on the west by I.anding Lane. 
Within the area are five smaller cohesive historic districts, inclu::ling the Carrrer-
cial district, the F.ast, North, West, and East High Street Residential 
Districts, and interspersed arrong these are several individual sites worthy of 
list.in3 in the National Register. 

CXH1ER:IAL DISTRICT' 

The Cbrrrrercial District canprises a nurrber of architecturally-related 
structures dating fran the second half of the 19th century through the first 
quarter of the 20th, located on lx>th sides of North Street between Main and 
High Streets and an l::x:>th sides of Main Street fran Bridge Street to Groc:rne Lane. 

The Clayton Building or O::ld Fellows Lodge (1857) (1) starrls at 114-118 
North Street, a three-story gable-front brick building atl:::odying features of the 
Jananesque .Revival and Italianate styles. Al:::ove the first story, the facade 
is divided into five recessed bays holding tall, rourrl-arched openings on the 
second story and arched 6/6 sash above, tenninating in an elaborate arched 
corbel table under the bracketed eaves. The Elkton Police De:partnent head­
quarters, (2) just south of the Clayton Building, is a JraSsive two-story three­
bay brick structure with a central t.c:Mer suggesting the Italianate style. The 
\mg Building (1841, rebuilt 1882) (3) at 125 North Street, is a two-story, 
two-bay brick building representing a c:::cr.hination of mid to late 19th century 
architectural fashions. The Cecil County Banking and Trust Cr:xrpany, (4) 121 
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N:>rth Street, is an early 20th century Neoclassical building with a granite­
block facade. The rerraining structures on North Street are· brick vernacular 
ccmrercial buildings of the late 19th and early 20th centuries. (5) 

The three-story stuccned Howard Hotel (6) at the northwest corner 
of North and M3.in Streets provides an ~rtant visual anchor with its t.v.u­
story porch and seven-bay facade. For a block's distance east and west of the 
hotel, Main Street is lined on ooth sides with tv.u or three story carmercial 
buildings, usually of brick, dating fran the late 19th and early 20th centuries, 
which convey a feeling of "dcMntoNn" characteristic of small towns throughout 
the region. (7) (8) 

West of Baw Street, the south side of Main Street is lined with a 
group of adjoining t.v.u and three story 18th and 19th century buildings. Fonrerly 
houses, several are now partially :modernized and converted to co.rtTrercial use. 
154 West Main Street (8) is one of the earliest; it has beaded siding and still 
reflects its original character. Just west of this group are several detached 
mid and late 19th century residences; several of these are also converted to 
ccmrercial use, such as 158 West Main Street (9), a mid-century hipped roofed 
house reflecting Greek Revival and Italian influence. At the corner of Main 
and Bridge Streets, the western ooundary of this district, is a group of adjoining 
late 19th century brick buildings, including a three-story rCM house (10) and 
three story cc:mrercial block. (11) • 

The north side of this section of Main Street differs from the south 
side in that it contains a series of large, detached structures of varying types 
and periods, set back fran the street·. The Chevron gas station (12) on the 
northwest corner of Main and Bow Streets was erected circa 1935 as a Pure Oil 
Corrpany station; its picturesque cottage form is typical of the "D:xrestic" 
style which characterized gas station architecture from the mid-twenties through 
the 1930's. Just west of this building is Partridge Hill, (13) 129 West Main 
Street, a fine, well preserved brick house of 1768 with mmy of its original . 
interior features. It was built by Colonel Henry HollingS\>.Drth, who was 
Quarternaster and Ccmnissary of the Eastern Shore during the Revolutionary War. 

The Colonial Revival House at 135 West Main (14), a brick, garrbrel 
roofed house with a date of 1885 in its north gable, is an early building in 
this style and still retains mmy of its original decorative details. The t.v.u­
story, hip roofed Elkton Post Office at 137 West M3.in was built in 1939 of 
Port Deposit granite. The size height, scale, and design of this sinplified 
Federal Revival style building contribute to the quality of the streetscape 
in the are.a. At the western end of the block, at the northeast corner of Main 
and Bridge Streets, is the First National Bank Building (15), 139 West Main, a 
tall, three-story Federal style brick building originally a residence. Its 
unusual four bay wide, asyrmetrical fenestration and original appearance are 
still clearly visible despite a rrodern balcony and t.v.u-story portico. It also 
has a curved projecting bay on its northwest corner, a feature typical of 
Federal and Nee-classical design but not frequently seen. 
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EAST RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT 

The East Residential District rontains builru..n9s fronting on the 
north side of East Main Street f rorn Groene Lane to the north branch of Big 
Elk Creek. On the south side of Main Street, it extends from South Street 
to a short distance \>.iest of the branch. It also contains part of locust lane 
and Church Street, oorth of Main Street. 

In addition, it includes the area south of Ma.in Street bounded on 
the west by South Street, on the south by Ho.vard street, and along the east 
side of Delaware Avenue to the creek, 

The East Residential District is the largest in size of the four 
residential districts, and is the richest and rrost varied in its architecture. 
It contains well preserved buildings fran the 18th century to the 20th century, 
of varying sizes, ages, levels of a:nplexity, and architectural styles. Buildings 
reflecting alnost every architectural fashion during this period blend easily 
and ccrnfortably, providing a sense of c:nl-iesiveness, continuity, gradual change 
and evolution (16, 17, 18, 19). There are only a fe.v recent houses, which are 
small and in traditional design, blending unobtrusively with the older buildings. 
Many of the district's houses are unified by similar settings of shady yards, tree 
lined streets, front p:>rches, and in nany places, old brick sidewalks (20, 21). 

Although there are a nurrber of buildings dating frcm the late 18th 
and early 19th century roncentrated on the western end of East Main Street within 
the district, the overall character of the district is daninated by the large 
and substantial houses built on Ea.St Main Street in the late 19th century, 
(22) a t:i-:e of ccrrmercial prosperity and groNt.h in Elkton. East Main Street 
can be characterized as Elkton's rrost fashionable and affluent neighborhood, 
with the are.a to its south along Delaware Avenue, South a.rrl HcMard Streets 
rontaining smaller, less elaborate workers' hares like those in the other three 
residential districts. 

The western end of Main Street within the district (23) rontains a 
fe.v late 18th and early 19th century buildings, including the Mitchell House, 
(24) listed on the National Register of Historic Places. These are often of 
brick, two stories high, three bays wide, and set close to the street (25). 
The Hennitage, another early residence, is located further east, off Main Street 
(26). Further east on Main Street, are a nurrber of mid-19th century houses 
reflecting Greek Revival and Italian Villa influence (18, 27). These are usually 
2 or 2 1/2 stories, three bays wide, and severe and cubical in form with hipped 
roofs. Several of these are ornarrented with unusually elaborate cast 
iron p:>rches as at 220 (28) and 222 (29) East Main Street. 

Several other houses along .Main Street reflect the Gothic Revival 
influence of .the mid-19th century (16), with center cross gables, porches, 
scrollwork brackets, bargeboards and finials. Several hares reflect the 
architectural fashions of the years follCMing the Civil War, the Italianate 
and Second Er.pire, either constructed in these styles or altered. with mansard 
roofs, bracketed cornices, and projecting three-sided bays, as at 257 East 
Main Street (30). 157 East Main Street (31) is a particularly good exanple 
of the Italianate, retaining its mansard roof, quoins, window hoods, bracketed 
cornice, panelled deers, and long windcMs, and stucco scored to sinullate 
ashlar. 
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The buildings which perhaps daninate East Main Street are the 
large hares built fran the 1880 's to the early decades of the 20th 
century, the tine of Elkton' s cx:mrercial expansion. These houses 
provide excellent exarrples of several architectural novements of the period. 
Cbllectively and a1so within i.rrlividual buildings, the eclecticism of the 
period is clearly reflected. 

250 East Main Street (32) features an excellent Stick Style two-story 
p:>rch on an asymnetrically canp::>sed, many gabled Queen Anne house with patterned 
shingles, the suggestion of rredieval overhangs and half-timbering, and many 
chimneys. A rear wing, ha'iever, a:mtains Colonial Revival dz~ration in its 
'b-.'0-story closed-in p:>rch. Next to this, at 252 East Main (33) is anot.'1er Queen 
Anne house with similar features and decorative details. 

254 East Main (34) a:rrbines Queen Anne, Shingle Style, and Colonial 
Revival elBlEilts in a unified design, with a shingled exterior, large porch, 
interesting sequence of roof lines, and the free interpretation of architectural 
rrotifs in the dorner and the recessed window in.the front gable. 235 East Main 
(35) is a Colonial Revival house with a hipped roof main block, sheathed with 
both shingles and clapboards, and retaining its Colonial Revival decorative 
detailing. The a.symretrical cc:rrp::>sition, and the octagonal tcMer on the 
southwest CX)rner, ha.;ever, shc:M the influence of the Queen Anne rather than 
adherence to principles of classical design. 

An unusual house at 2(2 East ·r.-.ain Street (36), is basically Colonial 
Revival with a Dutch flavor a::nbi.ned with the influence of the Shingle Style and 
the bungalow node. The curved front gable and the treatment of the interrupted 
east gable chimney with patterned brickt .'Ork are interesting features. The 
district also includes sane good srrall early 20th century bungalows on the west 
side of locust Lane, north of East Main Street. 

To the.south of Main Street, along the east side of South Street, north 
side of Howard, and both sides of Delaware Avenue, {M:l. Rt. 281) is a small area 
of smaller,. less elaborate 19th century houses. Many of these were built to 
house local workers and are similar to those described in the other three Elkton 
residential districts. Several two story frarre buildings with gable end facades 
and one story p:>rches are located on the east side of Delaware Avenue (37). 
Along Hc:Mard and South Streets are a number of identical two and three story, 
gable roofed, duplex houses with roof ridge aligned parallel to the street (38) .. 

The district also CX)ntains two churches, both good exanples of different 
phases of 19th century Gothic design. The 1859 Elkton ~thodist Church (39) of 
rroncx:hrorratic brownstone, is in a sirrple, traditional ecclesiastical form with 
a central shingled square tc:Mer, and imitative and superficial Gothic notifs. 
It is typical mid-century Gothic Revival churches built in rreny Maryland tGn'lS. 
The Presbyterian Omrch, {40) originally built in 1833 and enlarged to its 
present form in 1873 is red brick. Its c:x:mtrasting stone trim, t.c:::Mer and 
entrance to one side, large central window, increased freedan in the design 
and in the use of Gothic elenents, and increased solidity and sense of massive­
ness all reflect develoµnents in architectural design in the Victorian Gothic 
of the 1870's. 
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NORI'H AND \-IBST RESIDENI'IAL DISTRICI'S 

The North Residential District, carprising those buildings on the 
east side of North Street, north of P.ailroad Avenue, and on both sides of 
Stockton Street, east of North Street, reflects the housing b:x::m whidl 
aca::rrpanied the influx of new industries into Elkton in the last quarter of the 
19th century. These buildings typify "WC>rkers' housing of the period ( 41): pr~ 
inantly 2 1/2 story, three bay frame houses with gable fronts or central cross­
gables, and with one-story p.:>rches spanning the facades. Several of these 
buildings are duplexes. All are located on small lots, spaced close to each 
other and to the street. Alterations are for the rrost part minor and reversible, 
and do not obscure the essential fonn of these buildings. 

The West Residential District also exerrplifies workers' housing of the 
late 19th and early 20th centuries. The houses in this district are generally 
scr.e...'hat larger an::1 rrore stylish than those in the North, and occupy larger, tree­
shaded lots. Several brick buildings appear here, although rrost are of frarre 
construction. Decorative features typical of the period are evident, such as 
the sawn vergeboard trim of 217 West ?'..a.in Street (42) and the stick"'INOrk detailing 
of 222 an::1 224 West High Street. There have been few alterations or intrusions 
in the West Residential District, ·which includes buildin9s on both sides of 
West Main Street between Maffit and Blue Ball Streets, the east side of Blue 
Ball Street between West Main and the Conrail Tracks, both sides of West High 
Street between Blue Ball and Maffit Streets, and both sides of Maffit Street 
between West High and West Main Streets. 

FAST HIGH STREET RESIDENI'IAL DISTRICT 

The F.ast High Street Residential District, CXlrrpri.sing the rouses 
on lx>th sides of High Street between North Street and I.anding lane, on lx>th sides 
of Collins Avenue, Millburn Street, Clinton Street and Bethel Street, and on the 
west side of Boothe Street, is signficant as a cc:mmmity of industrial housing 
representing the various periods of Elkton's prosperity during the 19th century. 
Vfilile several late 19th century houses similar to those in the North and West 
residential. districts are scattered throughout the neighborhood, the predaninant 
fonn afPears to date fran Elkton's ascendancy as a carmercial and industrial 
center around mid-century. These are simple two or three story, gable-roofed 
frarre houses, 3 or 4 bays wide, rrostly duplexes, arranged in rows very close 
to the street. (43, 44) M3.Ily retain their original 6/6 sash and clapb:>ard 
siding; such alterations as have been made to houses within the district are 
reversible and limited to rrore recent forms of sash and siding whidl do not can­
pranise the fonn and character of these structures. 

'I\-~ very plain, vernacular Gothic b.i'1urches are located within the district; 
lx>th are stuccoed, gable-front structures, three bays wide by four bays deep, 
with :p=> ••. .akcd windows. The entrances are centered in the facades, with circular 
windo.·lS alx>ve. These buildings are typical of late 19th century churches serv fug 
black congregations. (45, 46) 



- 6 -

INDIVIIXJAL SITES 

The following :individual stn1ctures are also included in the Elkton 
Multiple Resource Area: 

The Cecil Cormty Sheriff's Office (47) on North Street, a long, narrow building 
with a pedi.rrented gable end facade, is built in two sections. A brick Italianate 
front sect.ion, three bays wide ·with paired segm:mtally arched wincb,..,s and an 
elaborate doorway, is connected to the rear stone portion and unified under a 
long gable roof and rontinuotis bracketed cornl.ce. 

Hollingsworth Tavern (48) 205-207 West Main Street, is a mid-18th century brick 
tavern with ~rt.ant associations with Elkton's history as a strategic p:>int 
on travel and military routes. Similar in fonn to Partridge Hill, its original 
appearance and details such as its keystone lintels are still clearly visible 
despite the nodernization of its front doorway. · 

Brick lbuse (49) 200 West Main Street, is a good exanple of the typical ta,'Il 
houses of the late 18th-early 19th century in Elkton; few of these ranain intact 
and unaltered in Elkton. 

Trinity Episcopal Olurch (SO) Nort:hwest rorner of West Main Street and Bridge 
Street, is a carefully designed Victorian Gothic church which is in excellent 
rondition and very well preserved. It features a p:>lychranatic a:rnbination of 
dark stone and contrasting red brickw:>rk which is used in horizontal bands and 
as trim around openings. It also has a striking bell-tower, buttresses, original 
large door hinges, stained glass, tiles, and slate roof. To the rear is a small 
hipped roof brick and stone parish house of similar design (51). 

SIQJIFICANCE 

Elkton's advantageous location at the juncture of major transportation 
corridors was instrurrental in its achievement of significance in the military, 
cx:r.rrercial, and industrial history of the region. 

Elkton figures praninently in the military history of the nation. It 
served as a key i:oint of anbarcation during the RevOlutionary War: in 1777 the 
British General HCMe larrled his annies here en route to Philadelphia; it was 
th.is maneuver v..hlch doared General Burgoyne at Saratoga. In March, 1781, 
I.a.f ayette errbarked f ron Elkton with troops bound for Annapolis, and in Septe!IDo-r 
of the s~ year, \·:ashington also erbarkro from ED: ton to inaugurate the clir.actic 
Yorktown carrpaign. Elkton retained its strategic inp:)rtance during the War of 
1812, when British marines under Admiral Cockburn nounted an unsuccessful attack 
on the town. 

Elkt.on·preceded Baltinore in the developrent of the flour-pa.eking 
i.ndustzy and was hailed in 1807 as an important wheat market, with trade at that 
t.:ine having attained a level of 250, ODO bushels per year. After the War of 1912, 
packet lines a:milir.ied to run between Elkton and Bal tirrore, and the New Castle 
Frenchtown Railroad (1832) increased Elkton's inp:>rtance as a ~rtation center. 
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Nurrerous mills were established on the Elk River, evidenced by surviving mill­
races ( 52) , and the town thrived. Prosperity waned in subsequent years 
llltil the }X>St-civil War period, when new industries including pulp mills, nacb.ine 
shops, fertilizer plants and canneries cane to the to.m, stimulating housing 
construction as reflected in the late 19th century residential districts. 

Elkton's history and develoµrent are clearly reflected ln the five 
districts arrl four individual structures within the Multiple :Resource Area. The 
town is architecturally significant in }X>ssessi.ng a large and varied collection 
of well-preserved structures representing changing fashions in residential, 
o::mrercial and ecclesiastical architecture fran the mid-eighteenth to early 
twentieth centuries, with an especially fine concentration of houses, churches, 
and a::rnrercial buildings dating fran the latter half of the nineteenth century. 

Peter E. Kurtze and Peggy Bruns Welssman 
Maryland Historical Trust 
21 State Circle - Shaw House 
Annaix>lis, Maryland (301) 269-2438 
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PERIOD (Check One or More aa Appropriate) 

0 Pre-Columbian 0 16th Century 
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AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate) 
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DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY 0 DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY 
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Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds 

NW 0 0 

NE 0 0 
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APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY: 

:Acreage Justification: 

LATITUDE 

Degrees Minutes Seconds 
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LONGITUDE 

Degrees Minutes Seconds 
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!LIST ALL STATES ANO COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES 

STATE: COUNTY 

STATE: COUNTY: 

STATE: COUNTY: 

STATE: COUNTY: 

NAME AND TITLE: 

ORGANIZATION 

STREET AND NUMBER: 

CITY OR TOWN:}-.··,' 

~State Liaison Officer Review: (Office Use Only) 

Significance of this property is: 
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